
By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have
saved the Authority approx. £** in printing costs

AGENDA
Pwyllgor PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PLANT A PHOBL IFANC

Dyddiad ac amser 
y cyfarfod

DYDD MAWRTH, 12 RHAGFYR 2017, 4.30 PM

Lleoliad YSTAFELL BWYLLGORA 4 - NEUADD Y SIR

Aelodaeth Cynghorydd Lee Bridgeman (Cadeirydd)
Cynghorywr De'Ath, Philippa Hill-John, Joyce, Morgan, Murphy, Phillips, 
Taylor a/ac Singh 

Patricia Arlotte (Cynrychiolydd Gatholig Rufeinig), Carol Cobert 
(Cynrychiolydd yr Eglwys yng Nghymru), Crump (Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-
Lywodraethwr), Karen Dell'Armi (Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr) 
a/ac Hutchings

Tua 
Amser.

1  Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb  

Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

4.30 pm

2  Datgan Buddiannau  

Dylid gwneud hyn ar ddechrau’r eitem agenda dan sylw, yn unol â’r 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau.

3  Cofnodion  (Tudalennau 1 - 6)

Cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 10 Hydref 2017 fel 
cofnod cywir.

4  Blaenoriaethau Band B - Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif – Adroddiad 
Cabinet Drafft  

Adroddiad i ddilyn

 Bydd y Cynghorydd Sarah Merry (Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod 
Cabinet dros Addysg, Cyflogaeth a Sgiliau) yn bresennol ac 
mae’n bosibl y bydd hi am wneud datganiad;

 Bydd Nick Batchelar (Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Dysgu Gydol Oes) 
a’i swyddogion yn cyflwyno’r adroddiad ac ar gael i ateb 

4.35 pm



cwestiynau Aelodau; 

 Cwestiynau gan Aelodau’r Pwyllgor;

 Ystyrir camau i’w cymryd ar gyfer yr eitem hon ar ddiwedd y 
cyfarfod.

5  Adroddiad Perfformiad Corfforaethol Chwarter 2 Addysg  
(Tudalennau 7 - 20)

 Bydd y Cynghorydd Sarah Merry (Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod 
Cabinet dros Addysg, Cyflogaeth a Sgiliau) yn bresennol ac 
mae’n bosibl y bydd hi am wneud datganiad;

 Bydd Nick Batchelar (Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Dysgu Gydol Oes) 
a’i swyddogion yn cyflwyno’r adroddiad ac ar gael i ateb 
cwestiynau Aelodau;

 Cwestiynau gan Aelodau’r Pwyllgor;

 Ystyrir camau i’w cymryd yn berthnasol i'r eitem hon ar ddiwedd 
y cyfarfod.

5.35 pm

6  Adroddiad Perfformiad Chwarter Dau - Gwasanaethau Plant  
(Tudalennau 21 - 44)

 Bydd y Cynghorydd Graham Hinchey (yr Aelod Cabinet dros 
Blant a Theuluoedd) yn bresennol a gallai fod am wneud 
datganiad;

 Bydd Tony Young (Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol) 
ac Irfan Alam (Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol Gwasanaethau Plant) 
yn cyflwyno’r adroddiad ac ar gael i ateb cwestiynau gan yr 
Aelodau; 

 Cwestiynau gan Aelodau’r Pwyllgor;

 Ystyrir camau i’w cymryd ar gyfer yr eitem hon ar ddiwedd y 
cyfarfod.

6.00 pm

7  Y Ffordd Ymlaen  7.00 pm

8  Dyddiad y cyfarfod nesaf  

Bydd cyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Craffu Plant a Phobl Ifanc ar ddydd 
Mawrth 9 Ionawr 2018 am 4.30 pm.

Davina Fiore
Cyfarwyddwr, Llywodraethu a Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol
Dyddiad:  Dydd Mercher, 6 Rhagfyr 2017
Cyswllt:  Mandy Farnham, 
02920 872618, Mandy.Farnham@caerdydd.gov.uk





Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

10 OCTOBER 2017

Present: Councillor Bridgeman (Chairperson), Councillors De'Ath, Philippa Hill-
John, Joyce, Murphy, Phillips, Taylor and Singh

Co-opted Members: Patricia Arlotte (Roman Catholic representative), 
Carol Cobert (Church in Wales representative) and Crump (Parent 
Governor Representative)

19 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence have been received from Karen Dell’Armi and Councillor Linda 
Morgan.

20 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received

21 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting on the 19 July 2017were agreed as a correct record; the 
minutes of the meeting on the 12 September 2017 were agreed as a correct record 
subject to the inclusion of Rebecca Crump’s (Parent Governor Representative) being 
added.  The minutes’ were signed by the Chairperson.

22 :   VALE, VALLEYS AND CARDIFF REGIONAL ADOPTION SERVICE - 
ANNUAL REPORT 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Graham Hinchey (Cabinet Member Children 
and Families), Rachel Evans (Head of Children’s Services, Vale of Glamorgan 
County Council), Angela Harris (Regional Adoption Manager), Tony Young (Director 
Social Services) and Irfan Alam (Assistant Director, Children’s Services) to the 
meeting to present the report, which the Committee indicated had been read and 
considered.

Members were invited to comment, seek clarification or raise questions on the 
information received.  Those discussions are summarised as follows:

 It is clear that collaboration in this instance is working well, however, it is clear 
that it is an area which is struggling particularly with staff shortages and 
funding.  It is not clear if the purpose of the review is to recommend extra 
resources or restructure to mitigate some of the problems.  Members were 
advised that it was a combination of both.  The Service is making the case for  
increased staffing levels but have been told that a business case needs to be 
made evidencing the resources required and how the resources are to be 
deployed. 

 Members noted that the review is still ongoing, but is likely to be concluded 
and a draft prepared by mid-November.  

Page 1

Eitem Agenda 3



 Members requested an update on the improvements and priorities for 
implementation referred to in the 2015-16 report and were advised that the 
aim for this report was to provide a shorter report and weave some of the 
findings into that report:

o the service has moved towards a more specialised way of working and 
are required to allocate work across the board if there is a need in a 
particular area;

o training has taken place on the new tablets however there have been 
some technical issues and it is anticipated they will be going live in the 
next few months;

o the website is now up and running having gone live in July of this year 
and it has been a useful tool for adopters to find out about the service;

o Ongoing work is being done to try and streamline the family finding 
process and work on a 12 week cycle once the referral comes in;

o Whilst a number of the processes were now being conducted in Welsh, 
letters were sent in Welsh if a preference has been notified and the 
website is bilingual, it is accepted that there is still more to be done 
going forward; and

o The development of opportunities for engaging and obtaining feedback 
from services users is continuing, it is a large piece of work. 

 Members expressed concern at the low update of counselling by Birth Parents 
and were advised that Cardiff is not unique, the figures show that update is 
low across Wales, and that often parents, at that early stage, do not want to 
engage.

 Members raised a query concerning the central list of Panel Members and the 
membership of the joint regional panel bearing in mind the difficulties with 
recruitment.  Members were advised that the independent chairs, of which 
there are 2 have to have some background in adoptions and that there are 
currently 4 vice chairs. 

The independent members are made up of foster carers, adopter parents and 
people with a connection to adopters.  Social Workers also sit on the panel, 
they have to have a background in adoption, childcare or fostering.  Because it 
is such a huge time commitment recruiting social workers is difficult and more 
Social Workers are needed.  It is very rarely that meetings are cancelled; there 
are 4 panel meetings a month.

 Members requested information about the number of adoption breakdowns 
and were advised that a review has taken place internally over the last 4 
years; it has provided some evidence and some anecdotal information 
surrounding adoption.  Whilst it revealed a low percentage of breakdowns, it 
was still too many and that it is vital that adoption support is effective and 
needs to be full resourced.

 Members sought clarification as to why there has been an increase in the 
number of children being placed for adoption.  Officers advised that there is a 
an increase in the number of children being referred and then placed 
nationally and there has also been a change in the Judicial approach; 

Page 2



adoption has to be and is the last resort.  The Authority is now better equipped 
to recognise and assess the situation involving the child earlier.

 Members requested information about Activity Days and were advised that 
they are normally run by a private company, potential adopters can access a 
directory and look for prospective children.  It is an activity that has been 
around for some time. There has been some resistance to it, but the children 
have found it to be a fun day which they enjoy. Both children and adopters 
who attend activity days are prepared for the day fun is the main focus of the 
day.  Children are prepared on the basis that they are meeting potential 
Mummies and Daddies,  it is usually used for the harder to place children.

 Members sought clarification of the support received to ensure that the 
adoption does not breakdown and were advised that all children have to have 
a support plan which the adopters have in their possession.  There is support 
provided throughout the placement through to the Adoption Order, however, if 
further support is required post Adoption Order than can be provided.  The 
placing Authority is responsible for 3 years after the Order. 

AGREED – That the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member and the Head of Children’s Services in the Vale of Glamorgan, conveying 
the observations of the Committee when discussing the Way Forward.

23 :   DEVELOPING THE SCHOOL ESTATE IN CARDIFF - DRAFT CABINET 
REPORT (TO FOLLOW) 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member Education, 
Employment & Skills), Nick Batchelar (Director, Education and Lifelong Learning) and 
Janine Nightingale (Head of Schools Organisation Access and Planning) to the 
meeting.  

The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member to make a statement in she made 
reference to the review of the school estate and the challenges that are currently 
been faced; the growing pressure on secondary schools; the need to develop 
provision to meet Additional Learning Needs; and the Local Development Plan and 
major housing sites.

Members were invited to comment, seek clarification or raise questions on the 
information received.  Those discussions are summarised as follows:

 Members sought clarification as to whether or not there is to be a guaranteed 
maintenance plan in place for any newly built schools bearing in mind the 
maintenance difficulties faced in a number of schools and were advised that it 
will be addressed to some extent within the Band B funding.  The maintenance 
of the school estate has to be a priority.

 Members were advised that the projected over subscription of secondary 
school places by September 2019 is currently being addressed – there are 
new schools being built, there may be capacity in different school areas and 
where schools are currently full temporary measures may need to be 
available. 

Page 3



 Members requested information as to the severity of the picture regarding 
schools places after September 2019 and were advised that whilst there had 
been big changes in the primary school cohort; whilst 3100 left high school this 
year and 4300 joined that figure has not changes since last year. Both high 
schools and primary schools are planned for the areas where there are new 
housing developments planned, for example the proposed development in the 
Radyr area will have a new high school and 5 new primary schools.  The 
Director advised that one pupils are in the system the numbers can be tracked 
and projected however, Cardiff does have a high rate of in year admissions.  It 
is anticipated that there will also be an additional 290 places for pupils with 
autism spectrum conditions, complex learning needs, and behaviour emotional 
and social needs required. 

 Members were advised that a further report will be prepared for Cabinet once 
the funding arrangements have been finalised which will address the concerns 
about provision for those with additional learning needs and any adaptions to 
existing provision.  The Director indicated that ALN provision is something 
which needs to be addressed as quickly as possible and certainly during this 
academic year.  

 Members noted that the nature and amount of funding from Welsh 
Government is to be available by the end of this year

 Members sought information about the Mutual Investment Model (MIM) and 
were advised that it had been introduced by Welsh Government as an 
alternative means of funding Band B. Members were advised that the 
governance of that model would be key; it is an expensive way for the public 
sector to build new schools and that any school would have to be operating 
and virtually 100% capacity throughout the whole of the schools life.  The 
preference for Cardiff would be the capital option bearing in mind the logistical 
concerns with MIM, particularly how quickly schools could be built.  

 Members queried the prognosis for the 3 Cat D condition schools; Cantonian, 
Fitzalan and Willows High Schools and were advised that there is a 
commitment to remove all Cat D condition schools from Wales.  However, 
there is a recognition that new schools will not be delivered until 2021 if funded 
by the Band B capital route.  Therefore during that time the schools have to be 
compliant and safe.  £5m has been spent on those schools ensuring that and 
there are now co-funded estate managers in the schools deemed at most risk.  
There will be an open dialogue and regular updates on the condition of those 
buildings.  It is anticipated that more funding may be required.  Members noted 
that the Cat D schools will be demolished eventually.

 The Director advised Members that until there is certainty about funding; the 
scale and funding route no decisions can be made about new schools for 
those areas. 

 Members queried whether there is more scope to be more ambitious about 
Welsh language provision.  The Director advised that there is a commitment to 
expand Welsh language provision and certainly there has been expansion 
through Band B.  There is currently 86% occupancy in Welsh medium primary 
schools, which is higher than English medium schools.

Page 4



 Interim measures are being considered going forward to address the issues 
with school places, Members queried how creative are those measures likely 
to be and whether MIM could address the maintenance issues.  Members 
were advised that until such times as the funding position, both the type and 
amount, have been clarified no detailed plans for any interim can be 
formulated.  MIM schemes will not attract companies unless they have 
ownership of the provision – it is a vehicle to deliver new buildings.

 Members asked Officers how they felt this Scrutiny could help support this 
journey and were advised that education is not a political football; there needs 
to be open and transparent debate particularly about the difficult investment 
decisions that need to be made going forward.

AGREED – That the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the Way 
Forward.

24 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is on 
Tuesday 14 November 2017 at 4.30 pm

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



CYNGOR CAERDYDD 
CARDIFF COUNCIL 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 12 December 2017

Quarter 2 Corporate Performance Report

Reasons for the Report

1. The Director of Education and Lifelong Learning will present the Education 

Directorate Corporate performance report for Quarter 2 2017/18, following its 

consideration by the Cabinet on 16 November 2017.  The Corporate 

Performance Report Quarter 2 is attached at Appendix A and B 

Corporate Performance Quarter 2 

2. The Council’s Performance Management Framework includes the regular 

reporting of Quarterly Performance by Directorate.  The Quarter 2 Education 

Performance reports, attached at Appendix A, provides the Directorates 

update on progress towards the strategic priorities identified in the Directorates 

delivery plan 2017 – 2019. Also attached at Appendix B is a copy of the 

Performance Overview Report for Education and lifelong learning, which 

includes an assessment of progress towards the Strategic priorities identified in 

the Directorates Delivery Plan.

3. The Quarter 2 Corporate performance overview report provides the Committee 

with an update information about the context that these services are operating 

in, performance information and the management actions that are being taken 

to address performance issues.  The report also provides an explanation of the 

progress being made in addressing the challenges identified in each quarter.

4. The Committee will, at its next meeting, receive the detailed Annual school 

performance report for 2016/17, which will cover 

 Pupils’ results in all phases

 Attendance at school

 Exclusions

 Young people not in employment, education or training (NEET)

Page 7

Eitem Agenda 5



 Estyn Inspection

Scope of Scrutiny

5. The scope of the scrutiny of this report is for the Committee Members to review 

the information provided to the Committee including the verbal report on the 

provisional school results and to provide any comments, concerns or 

recommendations to the Cabinet Member or Director of Education and Lifelong 

Learning.

6. This performance monitoring report will enable Committee to review, assess 

and challenge the implementation of actions to improve education for Cardiff’s 

pupils. Members may also wish to pass any comments, concerns or 

recommendations to the Cabinet Member and or Director of Education and 

Lifelong Learning. At this meeting Committee can review and question :

(i) the progress being made in achieving the Performance indicator 

end of year targets for 2017/18;

(ii) the resources available to deliver the corporate plan actions and 

core business priorities; and

(iii) any identified project risks (red status) and the appropriateness of 

the proposed countermeasure.

Way Forward

7. At the meeting Councillor Sarah Merry (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 

Education and skills) and Nick Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong 

Learning) will be in attendance to make a presentation and answer any 

questions Members may wish to ask.

8. Members may wish to review the information contained in the report together 

with that presented at the meeting and determine whether there are any 

comments, concerns or recommendations  which they would like to pass on to 

the Cabinet Member or Director of Education and Lifelong Learning.

Financial Implications 

9. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

Page 8



implemented with or without any modifications. These financial implications will 

need to be considered before any changes are implemented.

Legal Implications

10.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

legal implications arising from those recommendations. All decisions taken by 

or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; 

(b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the 

powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be 

undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the 

Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be 

properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to 

its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to:

 Review the information provided in the report on school results, and 

Education Performance report, and provide any comments, concerns or 

recommendations to the Cabinet Member and Director of Education and 

Lifelong Learning.

DAVINA FIORE NICK BATCHELAR

Director Governance and Legal Services Director of Education and
Learning

6 December 2017

Page 9



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Page 11



Page 12



WĂŐĞ�ϭϴ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

Yh�Zd�Z�Ϯ ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴ��/Z��dKZ�d��W�Z&KZD�E���Z�WKZd
�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ͗��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�>ŝĨĞůŽŶŐ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ �ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ͗�EŝĐŬ��ĂƚĐŚĞůĂƌ EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�;&d�Ϳ͗�ϱϵϬ �ĂďŝŶĞƚ�DĞŵďĞƌ͗��ůůƌ�^ĂƌĂŚ�DĞƌƌǇ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϭ�ʹ /ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ƉĂƌƚŝĐƵůĂƌůǇ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ͕�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ͕�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϭ͘ϭ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ
;�^Ϳ�с��ƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�^ĞĐƵƌĞ�ĚĂƚĂ;Ez�Ϳ�с�EŽƚ�zĞƚ��ǀĂŝůĂďůĞ;E�Ϳ�с�EŽƚ��ƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ;ƉͿс�WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂΎ�;>>��с�>ĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ͕�>ŝƚĞƌĂĐǇ�Θ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶͿ

�W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ�;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ�ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ�zͿ

YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ�zͿ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W�;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ�� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ��

й ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ Ͳ ϱϳ͘ϳй ;WͿ ϮϬϭϲͬϭϳ�<^ϰ�dĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ǀĂůŝĚ�ʹ�ǇĞĂƌ�Ϭ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�

EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ
dŚŝƐ� ǇĞĂƌ� ŚĂƐ� ƐĞĞŶ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� Ă� ŶĞǁ� ƐĞƚ� ŽĨ� '�^�� ƋƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝŶ� tĂůĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ŵĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐƐ͕�ŶƵŵĞƌĂĐǇ͕� �ŶŐůŝƐŚ� ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ͕ tĞůƐŚ� ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ͕� �ŶŐůŝƐŚ� ůŝƚĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ� ĂŶĚ� tĞůƐŚ� ůŝƚĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ͘� EĞǁ� ƌƵůĞƐ� ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ� ƐĐŚŽŽů� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ� ŚĂǀĞ� ĂůƐŽ� ďĞĞŶ� ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŚĂǀĞ� ŵĂĚĞ� Ă�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ͕�ƉĂƌƚŝĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ��ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�Žƌ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�DĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ�Ϳ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ϮϬϭϳ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕͛ Žƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ͘�EĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ĚĂƚĂ�ǁŝůů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ĐůĞĂƌĞƌ�ƉŝĐƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ͘
/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĨŽƵƌ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŝƐ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů� ^ŽƵƚŚ�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�tĂůĞƐ� ĂƐ� Ă�ǁŚŽůĞ͘� WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ůĞǀĞů� ;&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌͿ� ŝƐ� ϴϴ͘ϱй͕� Ă� Ϭ͘ϰƉƉƚ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ ƚŽ� ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ� ďƵƚ� ĂďŽǀĞ� ƚŚĞ� tĞůƐŚ� ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ� ŽĨ� ϴϳ͘ϯй͘��ZĞƐƵůƚƐ� ŝŶ� ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ͕� ůŝƚĞƌĂĐǇ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ� ;tĞůƐŚ� ĂŶĚ� �ŶŐůŝƐŚͿ� ĂŶĚ� DĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐĂů� �ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ͕� ďǇ� ϭ͘ϮƉƉƚ� Žƌ� ůĞƐƐ͘� WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� WĞƌƐŽŶĂů͕� ^ŽĐŝĂů� �ƵůƚƵƌĂů� �ŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ� ĂŶĚ� tĞůůͲďĞŝŶŐ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ďǇ�ϯ͘ϲƉƉƚ͘�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ĨŽƵƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞƐ͘
/Ŷ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĨŽƵƌ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŝƐ�ůĂƌŐĞůǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�tĂůĞƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ǁŚŽůĞ͘�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ůĞǀĞů�;�ŽƌĞ�^ƵďũĞĐƚ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌͿ�ŝƐ�ϴϵ͘ϰй͕�Ă�ϭ͘ϬƉƉƚ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂƌŐŝŶĂůůǇ�;Ϭ͘ϭƉƉƚͿ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ͘� � WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� �ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�Ϭ͘ϮƉƉƚ� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶ�tĞůƐŚ�ďǇ�ϯ͘ϯƉƉƚ͕�DĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐƐ�ƐƚĂǇĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ͘�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂƌŐŝŶĂůůǇ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞƐ͕�ďǇ�ŶŽ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ϭ͘ϱƉƉƚ͘
�ƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϯ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĨŽƵƌ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŝƐ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�tĂůĞƐ�ĂƐ� Ă� ǁŚŽůĞ͘� WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ůĞǀĞů� ;�ŽƌĞ� ^ƵďũĞĐƚ� /ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌͿ� ŝƐ� ϴϲ͘Ϯй͕� Ă� Ϭ͘ϰƉƉƚ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ�ĂŶĚ�ϭ͘ϮƉƉƚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ϴϳ͘ϰй͘�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ďǇ�Ϭ͘ϯƉƉƚ� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶ� tĞůƐŚ� ďǇ� Ϯ͘ϯƉƉƚ͘� WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� ^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ� ƐƚĂǇĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĂŵĞ� ;ϵϯ͘ϳйͿ� ĂŶĚ� DĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐƐ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ϭ͘ϱƉƉƚ͘�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞƐ͘
�ƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�ϱϳ͘ϳй�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ�͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ŵĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�Žƌ�tĞůƐŚͿ͘�ϲϵ͘ϴй�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ�Ϳ�ĂŶĚ�ϵϯ͘Ϯй�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ'Ϳ͘��ĂƌůǇ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ��ŽŶƐŽƌƚŝƵŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�ĂŶĚ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ͘�
�ƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϱ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐŚŽǁŶ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��Ύ�ƚŽ���ŐƌĂĚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ƉĂƐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ͘��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŝǀĞ�ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ͘�
dŚĞ��ŶŶƵĂů�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϴ͘�

й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ Ͳ� ϲϵ͘ϴй ;WͿ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ
й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ� Ͳ� ϵϯ͘Ϯй ;WͿ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ

dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ��ĂƉƉĞĚ�WŽŝŶƚƐ�^ĐŽƌĞ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ;��W�ϵͿ Ͳ� EŽƚ�ǇĞƚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚĞĚ EĞǁ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϲͬϭϳ EŽƚ�ǇĞƚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚĞĚ EŽƚ�ǇĞƚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚĞĚ EŽƚ�ǇĞƚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚĞĚ
й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ�ǁŝƚŚ�EŽ�YƵĂůƐ;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��Kd�^�ƉƵƉŝůƐͿ ϯϯ�ƉƵƉŝůƐϮϬϭϱͬϭϲ Yϯ Ϭ͘ϱй Eͬ� Eͬ� ϭй

й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ��^/�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϯ Ͳ� ϴϲ͘Ϯй� ϴϴй Eͬ� ϴϲ͘Ϯй�;WͿ ϴϲ͘ϲй
й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ��^/ Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ� Ͳ� ϴϵ͘ϰй� ϵϬй Eͬ� ϴϲ͘Ϯй�;WͿ ϴϵ͘ϱй

й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�;&WͿ�KƵƚĐŽŵĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ� Ͳ� ϴϴ͘ϱй� ϴϵй Eͬ� ϴϴ͘ϱй�;WͿ ϴϴ͘ϵй
й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�Kϱ�ŝŶ�Ύ>>��;&WͿ�ŝŶ�tĞůƐŚ Ͳ� ϵϮ͘ϭй� ϵϯ͘ϱй Eͬ� ϵϮ͘ϭй��;WͿ ϵϯ͘ϭй
й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>ϰ�ŝŶ�tĞůƐŚ�ϭƐƚ >ĂŶŐ͘�<^Ϯ Ͳ� ϵϮ͘ϴй� ϵϲй Eͬ� ϵϮ͘ϴй�;WͿ ϵϲ͘ϭй

й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>Ϯ�ƋƵĂů͘�/Ŷ�tĞůƐŚ�ϭƐƚ >ĂŶŐ͘�<^ϰ Ͳ� ϴϯ͘Ϯй�;WͿ ϴϮй Eͬ� Eͬ� ϳϵ͘ϴй
й�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>Ϯ�ƋƵĂů͘�/Ŷ�tĞůƐŚ�ϮŶĚ >ĂŶŐ͘��<^ϰ Ͳ� Ez� ϴϯ͘ϱй Eͬ� Eͬ� ϴϯ͘Ϯй

й��ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�ͲWƌŝŵĂƌǇ Ͳ� ϵϱй ϵϱй ϵϱй ϵϱ͘ϭϮй�;DĂǇ�ϭϳͿ ϵϱй

й��ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�Ͳ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ Ͳ� ϵϰ͘Ϯй ϵϱй ϵϰ͘ϱй ϵϰ͘ϭϴй�;DĂǇ�ϭϳͿ ϵϰ͘ϱй

P
age 13



WĂŐĞ�ϭϵ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�Ϯ ʹ �ůŽƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƚƚĂŝŶŵĞŶƚ�ŐĂƉ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ůŽǁͲŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ͕�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�ĂĨƚĞƌ͕�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚĞĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ăƚ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͕�ĂŶĚ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĞŶƚĞƌŝŶŐ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϭ͘ϭ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ �W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ

YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W ;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ�Ϭ� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�ϯ� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϯ� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϭ�

zĞĂƌ�ϭϭ��Kd�^ WƵƉŝůƐ�;Ăůů�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂƚƚĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚŝǀĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ͕�ŝŶĐ͘�WZhͿ͗Ͳ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�EŽ�YƵĂůƐ�Ăƚ�<^ϰ
Ez� Yϯ

ϮϬϭϲͬϭϳ�<^ϰ�dĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ǀĂůŝĚ�ʹ�ǇĞĂƌ�Ϭ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ

Eͬ� Eͬ� ϰйϰйϭϳ͘ϯйϭϮй

WƵƉŝůƐ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�&ƌĞĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů�DĞĂůƐdŚĞ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŽĨ� Ğ&^D ĂŶĚ�Ŷ&^D ƉƵƉŝůƐ� ŝƐ� ƐŵĂůůĞƐƚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� &ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ� WŚĂƐĞ� ĂŶĚ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ͘�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŝǀĞ�ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƉ�ŝŶ�ĂƚƚĂŝŶŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ğ&^D�ĂŶĚ�Ŷ&^D�ŝƐ�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ� ƚŚĂŶ� ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�tĂůĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� &ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ� WŚĂƐĞ� ;ϭϯ͘ϵƉƉƚ �ĂƌĚŝĨĨͬϭϰ͘ϯƉƉƚ tĂůĞƐͿ� ĂŶĚ� Ăƚ� <ĞǇ� ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�;ϭϯƉƉƚ �ĂƌĚŝĨĨ� ͬϭϰ͘ϯƉƉƚ tĂůĞƐͿ͘� �ƚ� <ĞǇ� ^ƚĂŐĞ� ϯ͕� ƚŚĞ� ŐĂƉ� ŝƐ� ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ� ůĂƌŐĞƌ� ŝŶ� �ĂƌĚŝĨĨ� ƚŚĂŶ� ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�tĂůĞƐ�;ϮϮ͘ϴƉƉƚ �ĂƌĚŝĨĨͬϮϬ͘ϰƉƉƚ tĂůĞƐͿ͘� /Ŷ� ƚŚĞ� >ĞǀĞů� Ϯн� ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ� Ăƚ� <ĞǇ� ^ƚĂŐĞ� ϰ͕� ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŝǀĞ� ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ� ƐŚŽǁ� ƚŚĂƚ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ͛Ɛ�Ğ&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ�ZĞŐŝŽŶ͘�
�ƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌŝŶŐ�ďĞƐƚ�ƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�WƵƉŝů��ĞƉƌŝǀĂƚŝŽŶ�'ƌĂŶƚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶĞĚ͘�
WƵƉŝůƐ��ĚƵĐĂƚĞĚ�KƚŚĞƌ�dŚĂŶ��ƚ�^ĐŚŽŽů�;�Kd�^Ϳ�ĂƚŚĂǇƐ�,ŝŐŚ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�WƵƉŝů�ZĞĨĞƌƌĂů�hŶŝƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉůĂĐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� <ĞǇ� ^ƚĂŐĞ� ϰ� ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞ� YƵĂůŝƚǇ� �ƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ� &ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ� ĨŽƌ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌ�ƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƌĞĂĚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶ͘�
�ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�ĂĨƚĞƌtŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ďĞƚƚĞƌ�ĐŽͲŽƌĚŝŶĂƚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�ĂĨƚĞƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͕�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ�ŝŶ�>ŝƚĞƌĂĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�EƵŵĞƌĂĐǇ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚĞĂŵƐ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚŝƐ ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŽĨ� ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶ� ĨĂƌ� ƚŽŽ� ůŽǁ͘�KĨ� ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ�ǇĞĂƌ� Ɛŝǆ �ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WĂƌĞŶƚ�ĐŽŚŽƌƚ͕� ϱϯ͘ϯй� ŚĂǀĞ� ĂŶ� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů� ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ� ŶĞĞĚ� ;ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ƐĐŚŽŽů� ĂĐƚŝŽŶ� ƉůƵƐ� Žƌ� ƐĐŚŽŽů� ĂĐƚŝŽŶͿ͕� ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƌƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŝŐƵƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�ϭϭ�ŝƐ�ϴϭ͘ϭй͘����>ŽŽŬĞĚ��ĨƚĞƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͛Ɛ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ��ŽͲŽƌĚŝŶĂƚŽƌ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽǁ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚĞĚ͘�
WƵƉŝůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞWĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚŚƌĞĞ͘�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ ŝŶ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ͕�ŝŶǀŽůǀŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ͕ ŝƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ĨŽƌƵŵ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�ƉƌĂĐƚŝĐĞ͘��ůŽƐŝŶŐ�dŚĞ�'ĂƉ�ŽĨĨŝĐĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�tĞůƐŚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĂĐĐƵƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ���>�ĚĂƚĂ�;ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�EĞĞĚƐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƌǀĞǇͿ�ŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͘

zĞĂƌ�ϭϭ��Kd�^ WƵƉŝůƐ�;Ăůů�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽůů�ŽĨ�Ă��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�^ĐŚŽŽů�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�WZhͿ͗Ͳ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�EŽ�YƵĂůƐ�Ăƚ�<^ϰ
Ez� Yϯ Eͬ� Eͬ� ϬйϬйϭϯйϮϱй

�ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�>ŽŽŬĞĚ��ĨƚĞƌ ;ĂƚƚĞŶĚŝŶŐ�Ă��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�WZh�ĂƐ�Ăƚ�W>�^��ĚĂƚĞͿ͗Ͳ й�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�K/Ͳ й��^/�Ăƚ�<^ϮͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�EŽ�YƵĂůƐ�Ăƚ�<^ϰ

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴ
ϭϭ�ŽĨ�ϭϲϭϴ�ŽĨ�Ϯϯϭ�ŽĨ�Ϯϯϲ�ŽĨ�ϮϯϭϮ�ŽĨ�ϮϯEz�

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴ
ϲϴ͘ϳϱйϳϴ͘Ϯϲйϰй ;WͿϮϲй ;WͿϱϮй ;WͿEz�

ϳϱйϳϴй Eͬ�� Eͬ�
ϴϴ͘ϵйϲϴ͘Ϯйϭϳ͘ϵйϰϲ͘ϰйϳϭ͘ϰйϬй

�ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�>ŽŽŬĞĚ��ĨƚĞƌ ďǇ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝů ;ĂƚƚĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂƐ�Ăƚ�W>�^��ĚĂƚĞͿ͗Ͳ й�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�K/Ͳ й��^/�Ăƚ�<^ϮͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�Ăƚ�<^ϰͲ й�EŽ�YƵĂůƐ�Ăƚ�<^ϰ

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴ
ϭϰ�ŽĨ�ϮϲϮϯ�ŽĨ�ϯϬϬ�ŽĨ�ϱϯϲ�ŽĨ�ϱϯϭϴ�ŽĨ�ϱϯEz�

ϱϯ͘ϴϱйϳϲ͘ϳйϬй ;WͿϭϭй ;WͿϯϰй ;WͿEz�

ϳϯ͘ϯй�ϳϴй� Eͬ� Eͬ�
ϳϭ͘ϰйϳϬ͘ϰйϭϱ͘ϮйϯϮ͘ϲйϱϰ͘ϯйϯй

Ğ&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�Ͳ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<^ϰ Ͳ� ϯϬ͘ϴй ;WͿ ϮϬϭϲͬϭϳ�dĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ǀĂůŝĚ�ʹ�ǇĞĂƌ�Ϭ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ

EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞEŽŶ�&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�Ͳ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<^ϰ
Ͳ� ϲϰ͘ϱй ;WͿ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ

Ğ&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�Ͳ й��^/��Ăƚ�<^Ϯ Ͳ ϳϵ͘ϭй ϴϬ͘ϲй Eͬ� Eͬ� ϳϴ͘ϴй
EŽŶ�&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�Ͳ й��^/�Ăƚ�<^Ϯ Ͳ ϵϮ͘ϭй ϵϯй Eͬ� Eͬ� ϵϮ͘ϱй
Ğ&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�Ͳ й��ƚƚĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ͗ͲWƌŝŵĂƌǇͲ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ Ͳ� Yϯ ϵϯ͘ϭйϵϭй

E� E� ϵϮ͘ϵйϵϬ͘ϳй
WƵƉŝůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ��ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�>ĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ͗Ͳ й�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�K/Ͳ й��^/�Ăƚ <^ϮͲ й�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�Ăƚ�<^ϰ

Ͳ� Yϯ ϴϳйϴϵйϲϲй
Eͬ�� Eͬ�� ϴϲ͘ϲйϴϴ͘ϰйϲϯ͘ϵй

P
age 14



WĂŐĞ�ϮϬ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϯʹ /ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͕�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ĨŽƌ��ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�EĞĞĚƐ

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϭ͘ϭ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ �W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ

YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W�;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ�Ϭ� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�Ϭ� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϭ� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϯ��

й�^�E�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚ͘�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�K/͗Ͳ� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚĞĚͲ� ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ�WůƵƐͲ ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ
Ez� Yϯ ϭϳйϰϲйϳϰй

Eͬ� Eͬ� ϭϲ͘ϳйϰϱ͘ϯйϳϯй dŚĞƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�EĞĞĚƐ�;�>EͿ�ĂŶĚ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ͘��Ɛ�Ă�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ͕�ƚŽŽ�ŵĂŶǇ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ĂƌĞĂ�Žƌ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ĨƵůů�ƚŝŵĞ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ͘ �Ŷ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ŽĨ��>E�ƚƌĞŶĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĚĞŵĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƉůĂĐĞƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂŶĚ���^ĐŚŽŽů�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ͘��
dŚĞ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�;KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳͿ�ƐĞƚƐ�ŽƵƚ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ EĞĞĚƐ�;�>EͿ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŶĞǁ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͘�
�Ŷ��ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�EĞĞĚƐ�;�>EͿ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂĚ�ƚĞĂĐŚĞƌƐ͕�ŽĨĨŝĐĞƌƐ͕�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�,ĞĂůƚŚ��ŽĂƌĚ͘�
dŚĞ��>E�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǀŝƐĞĚ͕�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ͕�ƚŽ�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ͘�
^ĐŚŽŽů��>E��ŽͲŽƌĚŝŶĂƚŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽĨĨŝĐĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐƚĂĨĨ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ͘�

й�^�E�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚ͘��^/͕�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ͗Ͳ� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚĞĚͲ� ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ�WůƵƐͲ ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ
Ez� Yϯ ϭϴйϱϮйϴϬй

Eͬ� Eͬ� ϭϲ͘ϳйϱϬ͘Ϭйϳϵ͘Ϯй
й�ŽĨ�^�E�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚ͘��^/͕�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϯ͗Ͳ� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚĞĚͲ� ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ�WůƵƐͲ ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ

Ez� Yϯ Ϯϲ͘ϱйϱϬ͘ϵйϳϬ͘ϯй
Eͬ� Eͬ� Ϯϱ͘ϲйϱϬ͘ϵйϳϬ͘ϯй

й�ŽĨ�^�E�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚ͘�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн��<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰͲ� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚĞĚͲ� ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ�WůƵƐͲ ^ĐŚŽŽů��ĐƚŝŽŶ
Ez� Yϯ

ϮϬϭϲͬϭϳ�dĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ǀĂůŝĚ�ʹ�ǇĞĂƌ�Ϭ�
Eͬ� Eͬ� ϭϲ͘ϱйϭϵйϯϭй

&ŝǆĞĚ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĞǆĐůƵƐŝŽŶƐ�ƉĞƌ�ϭϬϬϬ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�;ϱ�ĚĂǇƐ�Žƌ�ĨĞǁĞƌͿWƌŝŵĂƌǇ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
Ϯϰϰ�ĞǆĐƐϵϱϬ�ĞǆĐƐ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
ϴ͘ϵϰϴ ϵ͘Ϭϰϴ Eͬ� Eͬ� ϵ͘ϯϴϱϱ͘ϯ

&ŝǆĞĚ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĞǆĐůƵƐŝŽŶƐ�ƉĞƌ�ϭϬϬϬ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�;ϲ�ĚĂǇƐ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞͿWƌŝŵĂƌǇ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
ϰ�ĞǆĐƐϰϬ�ĞǆĐƐ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
Ϭ͘ϭϲϮ͘ϯϵ Ϭ͘ϭϱϬ͘ϴ Eͬ� Eͬ� Ϭ͘ϮϬ͘ϵϭ

�ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĚĂǇƐ�ůŽƐƚ��ǆĐůƵƐŝŽŶƐ��;&d��ϱ�ĚĂǇƐ�Žƌ�ĨĞǁĞƌͿ�

WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
ϮϰϬ�ĞǆĐƐϵϬϵ�ĞǆĐƐ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
ϭ͘ϱϳϭ͘ϳϯ ϭ͘ϱϭ͘ϰ Eͬ� Eͬ� ϭ͘ϱϳϭ͘ϱϱ

�ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĚĂǇƐ�ůŽƐƚ��ǆĐůƵƐŝŽŶƐ�;&d��ϲ�ĚĂǇƐ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞͿ
WƌŝŵĂƌǇ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
ϯϱ�ĚĂǇƐϰϭϮ�ĚĂǇƐ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
ϴ͘ϳϱϭϬ͘ϯ ϴ͘Ϭϵ͘Ϭ Eͬ� Eͬ� ϵ͘ϯϭϮ͘ϲϯ

P
age 15



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϭ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϰʹ �ŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵĨĨŝĐŝĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƉůĂĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ͕�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĞƐƚĂƚĞ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϭ͘ϭ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ �W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ ^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ�zͿ

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ

YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W�;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ��Ϭ� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�ϯ� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϱ� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ��ϯ�

й�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝŶŐ�ϭƐƚ�ĐŚŽŝĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͗WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�;�WͿ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�;�WͿ Ͳ�
^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϭϳ
ϴϵ͘ϳϱйϳϲ͘Ϯϭй ϴϬйϳϬй

Eͬ�
&Žƌ�^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϭϳ�
ϴϵ͘ϳϱйϳϲ͘Ϯϭй

^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϭϲϴϲйϳϲй
dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�zƐŐŽů�,ĂŵĂĚƌǇĂĚ� ŝƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ ƐƚĂƌƚ�ŽŶ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͕� ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚŚƌĞĞ͘�,ŽǁĂƌĚŝĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�zƐŐŽů�'ůĂŶ�DŽƌĨĂ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ ĂůƐŽ ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ǁĞůů͘�
��ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ��ĂƐƚĞƌŶ�,ŝŐŚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌƐƚ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�ŽĐĐƵƉĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ� ƉůĂĐĞ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� �ŚƌŝƐƚŵĂƐ� ŚŽůŝĚĂǇƐ͘� dŚĞ� :ŽŝŶƚ� �ŽŵŵŝƚƚĞĞ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂů� ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĐĂƚĞƌŝŶŐ͕�ĐůĞĂŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�/�d�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ͘�
�ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�tĞƐƚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�,ŝŐŚ�^ĐŚŽŽů ŽƉĞŶĞĚ�ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�ϰƚŚ ^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽůĚ�DŝĐŚĂĞůƐƚŽŶ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽůůĞŐĞ� ƐŝƚĞ͘�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ� ƉĞƌŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ� ŚĂƐ� ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ� ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝƐ� ĚƵĞ� ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϴ͘��
��ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĐĂƐĞ ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ĂŶĚ���ϮϭƐƚ �ĞŶƚƵƌǇ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ ǁĂƐ�ƐƵďŵŝƚƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�tĞůƐŚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ͘��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚŚƌĞĞ͘�
�Ŷ��ƐƐĞƚ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�>ĂŶĚůŽƌĚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶͬƐƵŝƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͕�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĂƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĞ͘���ďŝĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�άϮϬŵ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐƵďŵŝƚƚĞĚ͕�ďƵƚ�ĂĨĨŽƌĚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽǁ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ĐůĂƐƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�͞�͕͟�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ůŝĨĞ�ŝŶ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶ͘���ůĂƌŐĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ͕�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĞĚ�ĂƐ�͞�͟�ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆŚŝďŝƚŝŶŐ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĚĞƚĞƌŝŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ϰϲй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĞƐƚĂƚĞ͘�

й�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝŶŐ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ϭƐƚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ĐŚŽŝĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͗WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�;�WͿ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�;�WͿ
Ͳ�

^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϭϳ
ϵϯ͘ϴϲйϴϭ͘ϴϮй ϵϬйϵϬй Eͬ�

&Žƌ�^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϭϳ�
ϵϯ͘ϴϲйϴ͘ϴϮй

^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϭϲϵϯйϴϱй

dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĞŶƌŽůůĞĚ�ŝŶ�tĞůƐŚ�ŵĞĚŝƵŵ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϰʹ�ϭϴ�ǇĞĂƌƐ
Ͳ :ĂŶ�ϮϬϭϳ

ϳ͕ϮϳϮ
:ĂŶ�ϮϬϭϳ
ϳ͕ϮϮϮ Eͬ� Eͬ�

:ĂŶ�ϮϬϭϲ
ϳ͕ϬϭϬ

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϱʹ ZĞĐƌƵŝƚ͕�ƌĞƚĂŝŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŝŶ�ŽƵƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƐĞƚƚŝŶŐƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�Ăƚ�Ăůů�ůĞǀĞůƐ

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϭ͘ϭ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ �W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ
ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ

YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W�;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ�Ϭ� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�Ϭ� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ��ϰ� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�Ϭ��

dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�>ĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ ŝƐ�ũƵĚŐĞĚ� ďǇ��ƐƚǇŶ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�Žƌ�ĞǆĐĞůůĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƌŽůůŝŶŐ�ďĂƐŝƐͲ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇͲ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇͲ^ƉĞĐŝĂů

ϯϬ�ŽĨ�ϯϵϯ�ŽĨ�ϭϭϭ�ŽĨ�ϯ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ
ϳϳйϮϳйϯϯй

ϴϱйϱϱйϴϱй
Eͬ� Eͬ� ϳϰйϯϯйϮϱй

dŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĐůŽƐĞůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƐŽƌƚŝƵŵ�ĂŶĚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ��ŽĚŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĚƌŝǀĞ�ƵƉ�ƚŚĞ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͘�WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ŽďƐĞƌǀĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�͚'ƌĞĞŶ͛�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŶŶƵĂů�EĂƚŝŽŶĂů�^ĐŚŽŽů��ĂƚĞŐŽƌŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕� Ă� ƐŵĂůů� ŶƵŵďĞƌ� ŽĨ� ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ� ŝŶƐƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ůĂƐƚ� ϯ� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵŝŶŐ� ƚŽ� ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ͘�
KĨ�ƚŚĞ dĞĂĐŚ�&ŝƌƐƚ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ͕�ĂůŵŽƐƚ�ϱϬй�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ă��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ� ƐĐŚŽŽů͘� /Ŷ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƵŵŵĞƌ� ƚĞƌŵ͕� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ĂƐŬĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ� Ă� ƐƵƌǀĞǇ� ĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŶĨŝĚĞŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ŽĨ� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘� dŚĞ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ� ƉŽƐŝƚŝǀĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĐĞŶƚƌĞĚ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�ϭϬϬй�ďǇ�Ăůů�tĞůƐŚ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ͘�WƌĞƉĂƌĞĚŶĞƐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƵƉŝů�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�ϭϬϬй͘�
WůĂŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�Ă�EĂƚŝŽŶĂů��ĐĂĚĞŵǇ�ďǇ�^ƉƌŝŶŐ�ϮϬϭϴ�ĂƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ͘�dŚĞ�ĂŵďŝƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�Ăůů�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ƐŬŝůůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ͗

Ͳ �ůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĨĂŝƌ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚĞĂĐŚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ƐŬŝůůƐ

dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ��ƐƚǇŶ͕�ũƵĚŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�Žƌ�ĞǆĐĞůůĞŶƚ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ ŽŶ�Ă�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƌŽůůŝŶŐ�ďĂƐŝƐͲWƌŝŵĂƌǇͲ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇͲ^ƉĞĐŝĂů

ϯϬ�ŽĨ�ϯϵϯ�ŽĨ�ϭϭϮ�ŽĨ�ϯ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳ

ϳϳйϮϳйϲϳй

ϴϱйϱϱйϴϱй Eͬ� Eͬ� ϳϭ͘ϰй�ϯϯ͘ϯй�ϳϱй�

P
age 16



WĂŐĞ�ϮϮ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

Ͳ hƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƚĞƐƚ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�ŽŶ�ŚŽǁ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŵĂŬĞƐ�Ă�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�Ͳ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŝĚĞŶƚŝĨǇŝŶŐ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ ůĞĂĚĞƌƐ
dŚĞ��ĐĂĚĞŵǇ�ŝƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĨŽƌŵƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�/ŶŝƚŝĂů�dĞĂĐŚĞƌ�dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ͕�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀĂŵƉ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞǁ�ĂĐĐƌĞĚŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ĐƌŝƚĞƌŝĂ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶŝƚŝĂů�ƚĞĂĐŚĞƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ͘
tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ŬĞǇ�ĨŽĐƵƐ͕�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚĞǆƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽǁŝŶŐ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ͘��

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϲʹ tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ��ŽŶƐŽƌƚŝƵŵ�ƚŽ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐĞůĨͲŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϭ͘ϭ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ �W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ

YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W�;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ�Ϭ� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�ϭ� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϯ�� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ��ϭ�

EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ��ƐƚǇŶ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƵƉ͗
Ͳ�ƐƚǇŶ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐͲ^ŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚͲ^ƉĞĐŝĂů�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ

Ͳ�Ͳ�Ͳ�

^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳϳ�Ϯ�ϰ�

ϱ�Ϭ�Ϭ� Eͬ�
:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϭϳϲ�Ϯ�ϱ�

:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϭϲϳ�ϯ�ϯ�
�Ɛ Ăƚ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚŝƌƚĞĞŶ ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ ĂŶ��ƐƚǇŶ��ĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ͘�/Ŷ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ͕�ƚǁŽ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͛�ŚĂǀĞ�ŐŽŶĞ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂŶ��ƐƚǇŶ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ�;ŽŶĞ�ŝŶƚŽ��ƐƚǇŶ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ŝŶƚŽ�^ƉĞĐŝĂů�DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐͿ͘�dǁŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�^ƉĞĐŝĂů�DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�;ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĐůŽƐƵƌĞͿ͘�dŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ͕�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐŽƌƚŝƵŵ͕�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĐĂƵƐŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ͘��
dŚĞ ƐĞůĨͲŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�;WĞĞƌ��ŶƋƵŝƌǇ͕�^ĐŚŽŽů�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�,ƵďƐ͕�WĂƚŚĨŝŶĚĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�^ĐŚŽŽů�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�'ƌŽƵƉƐͿ�ŝƐ�ŵĂƚƵƌŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŽƉĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ǁŽƌŬ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ͕�ďƵƚ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚŽŶĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ Ă�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƌŽůĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͕�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĞƚĐ͘�
dŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϭϳϴ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ŽŶĞ ƚŽ�Ϯϭϰ ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ͕�ĂŶĚ�Ϯϴ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�>��ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌƐ͘�dŚĞ�>��ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�ƉĂŶĞů�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵĞƚ�ĂŶĚ�Ϯϭ�ŶĞǁ�>��ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ͘�ZĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƐ͘�^ƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽůĞ�ŽĨ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌƐ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�Ă�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂŬĞͲƵƉ�ŽĨ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƌŝƐĞ͘�ZĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĐůĞƌŬƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ͘�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ĐůĞƌŬƐ�ŝƐ�ŶŽǁ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ͘�

й ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌŝƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�͚'ƌĞĞŶ͛ ďǇ�t'͗ͲWƌŝŵĂƌǇͲ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇͲ^ƉĞĐŝĂů
Ͳ�Ͳ�Ͳ

:ĂŶ�ϮϬϭϴYϰYϰYϰ

:ĂŶ�ϮϬϭϴϰϬйϯϬйϲϯй Eͬ� Eͬ�

:ĂŶ�ϮϬϭϳϯϲйϮϲйϱϳй
dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϱϬй ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�Ϯн�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ Ͳ� ϳ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ

>Ϯн�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ǀĂůŝĚ�Ͳ�ǇĞĂƌ�Ϭ Eͬ� Eͬ�
EŽƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ

й ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ũƵĚŐĞĚ� ďǇ��ƐƚǇŶ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�Žƌ�ĞǆĐĞůůĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƌŽůůŝŶŐ�ďĂƐŝƐ�Ͳ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇͲ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇͲ^ƉĞĐŝĂů

Ϯϴ�ŽĨ�ϯϵϰ�ŽĨ�ϭϭϮ�ŽĨ�ϯ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳϳϮйϯϲйϲϳй

;ϮϬϭϲͬϭϳ�
�zͿϴϱй�ϱϱй�ϴϱй�

Eͬ� Eͬ�
;ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲ��zͿϳϭй�ϰϰйϳϱй

й�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƚĞĚ ǁŚĞƌĞ��ĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŝƐ ũƵĚŐĞĚ�ďǇ��ƐƚǇŶ�ƚŽ�ďĞ ŐŽŽĚ�Žƌ�ĞǆĐĞůůĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƌŽůůŝŶŐ�ďĂƐŝƐͲWƌŝŵĂƌǇͲ^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇͲ^ƉĞĐŝĂů

ϯϬ�ŽĨ�ϯϵϯ�ŽĨ�ϭϭϭ�ŽĨ�ϯ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ϭϲͬϭϳϳϳйϮϳйϯϯй

;ϮϬϭϲͬϭϳ�
�zͿϴϱй�ϱϱй�ϴϱй� Eͬ� Eͬ�

;ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲ��zͿϳϰйϯϯйϮϱй
dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�ƌĞĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĚĞĨŝĐŝƚ�ďƵĚŐĞƚƐ� Ͳ� ϭϭ ϭϬ Eͬ� ϭϬ ϭϰ
dŚĞ�й�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŽƌ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ůů�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ

Ϯϴ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƐϮϭϰ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƐ
ϳ͘ϭϲйϭϬ͘ϰϴй ϲйϳ͘ϱй Eͬ� ϳ͘ϱϵйϴ͘ϲϰй ϲ͘ϵйϴ͘ϭй

P
age 17



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϯ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϳʹ �ƵŝůĚ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƌŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ͘

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϭ͘ϭ͕�ϯ͘ϯ�Θ�ϰ͘ϭ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ �W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ

YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ��zͿ

ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ;ϮϬϭϱͲϭϲ��zͿ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W�;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ�ϭ� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�Ϯ� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�Ϯ� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϭ�

dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ͕�ĂŐĞĚ�ϭϲͲϭϴ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽůĚ͕�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�;�ĂƌĞĞƌƐ�tĂůĞƐ�dŝĞƌ�Ϯ�Θ�ϯͿ;�WͿ
Ͳ ϯϲϮ ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ϳϮϱϬ ϯϬϬ� Eͬ� Eͬ� ϰϮϲ� �ŚŝůĚ�ZŝŐŚƚƐ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞhŶŝĐĞĨ ŚĂǀĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ŽĨĨŝĐĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŝƐ ǁĞůů�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ͘���ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌ�ĚŝƐĐŽǀĞƌǇ�ĞǀĞŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ďǇ�&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϴ͘�

�ĂƌĚŝĨĨ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�͚�ĂƌĚŝĨĨ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ͛�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵƚŚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŽŶ͘�ϭϰϬ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐĞƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ϳϱ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�Ă�ƉůĞĚŐĞ ƚŽ�ĚĂƚĞ͘�tŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ďƌŽŬĞƌĂŐĞ�ŵŽĚĞůƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂƚĐŚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ŽĨĨĞƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͘�WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�E��d�ĨŝŐƵƌĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϳ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚŚƌĞĞ͘�
&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�&ŝƌƐƚ�Ŷ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶͲůĞĚ ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞͲĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�&ŝƌƐƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�dĞĂŵ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�Ă�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů͕�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�͚�ĂƌůǇ�,ĞůƉͲ�&ĂŵŝůǇ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�tŽƌŬĞƌƐ͛�ŽŶ�Ă�ĐůƵƐƚĞƌ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘����ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚŝŶŐ�&ůǇŝŶŐ�^ƚĂƌƚ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉĂŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂůƐŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ϬͲϭϲǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ͘�
^ƵŵŵĞƌ�,ĞĂůƚŚǇ��ĂƚŝŶŐ�WƌŽũĞĐƚdŚĞ�^ƵŵŵĞƌ�,ĞĂůƚŚǇ��ĂƚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ϭϯ�ƐŝƚĞƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ϯϭ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͘��Ŷ�ĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚŚƌĞĞ͘�

й�zĞĂƌ�ϭϭ�>ĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ���d�;KĐƚŽďĞƌ��ĂƌĞĞƌƐ�tĂůĞƐͿ
KĐƚ�ϮϬϭϲ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐϭϬϬ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�E��d

Yϯ�ƉƌŽǀYϰ�ĨŝŶĂů ϵϳ͘ϱй;Ϯ͘ϱй�E��dͿ
Eͬ� Eͬ� ϵϳй;ϯй�E��dͿ

й�zĞĂƌ�ϭϯ�>ĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ���d�;KĐƚŽďĞƌ��ĂƌĞĞƌƐ�tĂůĞƐͿ
KĐƚ�ϮϬϭϲ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐϰϱ��ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�E��d

Yϯ�ƉƌŽǀYϰ�ĨŝŶĂů ϵϴй;Ϯй�E��dͿ Eͬ� Eͬ� ϵϲ͘ϵй;ϯ͘ϭϬй�E��dͿ
EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌ
EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�͚ZŝŐŚƚƐ�ZĞƐƉĞĐƚŝŶŐ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ��ǁĂƌĚ͛��
й�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ŝŶ�ĞĂĐŚ�͚ĂŐĞ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ͛�Ͳ ƉĞƌ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ��ĂƐĞůŝŶĞ��ƐƐ͛ƚ�ŝŶ�ZĞĐĞƉƚŝŽŶ�Ăƚ��ŐĞ�ϰ>ĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ͕�>ŝƚĞƌĂĐǇ�Θ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ;tĞůƐŚͿ�;�ŶŐůŝƐŚͿͲ й�ϲ�ʹ�Ϯϰ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�Ϯϰ�ʹ�ϯϲ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϯϲ�ʹ�ϰϴ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϰϴ�ʹ�ϳϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ

Yϰ
EĞǁ�ƐƵŝƚĞ�ŽĨ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ďĂƐĞůŝŶĞ�ƉƌŽĨŝůĞ�ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�EŽ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�Ăƚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͘��ƐƐĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ďĂƐĞůŝŶĞ͘

ϮϬϭϱͬϭϲ��zϰϯ͘ϱϮйϭϳ͘ϱϳй�ϯϱ͘ϵϱйϯϮ͘ϵϴй�ϭϲ͘ϰϱйϰϮ͘ϰϯй�Ϯ͘ϳϳйϰ͘ϲϱй
DĂƚŚĞŵĂƚŝĐĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚͲ й�ϲ�ʹ�Ϯϰ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�Ϯϰ�ʹ�ϯϲ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϯϲ�ʹ�ϰϴ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϰϴ�ʹ ϳϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ

Yϰ ϭϱ͘ϰϮйϯϲ͘Ϯϲйϰϭ͘ϯϲйϰ͘ϲϬй
WĞƌƐŽŶĂů�Θ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚͲ й�ϲ�ʹ�Ϯϰ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�Ϯϰ�ʹ�ϯϲ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϯϲ�ʹ�ϰϴ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϰϴ�ʹ ϳϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ

Yϰ ϭϬйϮϲ͘ϴϴйϰϲ͘ϭϮйϭϱ͘Ϯϲй
WŚǇƐŝĐĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚͲ й�ϲ�ʹ�Ϯϰ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�Ϯϰ�ʹ�ϯϲ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϯϲ�ʹ�ϰϴ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͲ й�ϰϴ�ʹ ϳϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ

Yϰ ϱ͘ϳϴйϮϮ͘Ϭϯйϰϳ͘ϳϳйϮϮ͘ϳϳй

P
age 18



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϰ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϴͲ /ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ

tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ϰ͘Ϯ�Θϰ͘ϯ

DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ �W��ŽƌƉ�WůĂŶ
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ

YϮϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ
ϮϬϭϳͲϭϴdĂƌŐĞƚ

YϮϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ
YϭϮϬϭϳͲϭϴZĞƐƵůƚ

zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚϮϬϭϲͲϭϳZĞƐƵůƚ
YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂĚůŝŶĞ��ĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���W�;ϮͿ ZĞĚ�Ͳ�Ϭ� ZĞĚͬ�ŵďĞƌ�Ͳ�ϭ� �ŵďĞƌͬ'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϯ� 'ƌĞĞŶ�ʹ�ϰ�

ZĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ Ͳ άϮ͘ϬϮϭŵ άϮ͘ϯϳϭŵ άϮ͘ϴϯϴŵ άϮ͘ϯϮϭŵ άϮ͘ϲϱϯŵ �ƵĚŐĞƚ�Θ�dƌĂĚŝŶŐ�Ŷ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ƉĂǇ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝŶ��ƌǇŶ��Ğƌŝ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĐŚŽŽů ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŵĞĂůƐ ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉŝůŽƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞĚ͘�&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƉŝůŽƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ĞǆĂŵŝŶĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƚƵŵŶ�ƚĞƌŵ͘�
�ĂĐŚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŵĂũŽƌ� ƚƌĂĚŝŶŐ� ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ǁŝƚŚŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ� �ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ� ŶŽǁ� ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ� ŽŶ� Ă� ŶĞƚ� Ŷŝů�ďƵĚŐĞƚ� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘� &Žƌ� ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭϳͬϭϴ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ďŽƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĐŚŽŽůƐ� DĞĂůƐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ^ƚŽƌĞǇ� �ƌŵƐ� ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ Ă�ďĂůĂŶĐĞĚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�DƵƐŝĐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ĚĞĨŝĐŝƚ�ŽĨ�άϭϲϭŬ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚůǇ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘
dŚĞ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ƉŽƌƚĂů�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ŶŽǁ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�Ăůů��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ��ŽĚŝĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƉŽƌƚĂů�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�Ăůů�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽŽů� ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ăůů� ƐĐŚŽŽů�ďĂƐĞĚ�ƐƚĂĨĨ͘�&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚƌŽƉ�ŝŶ�ƐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐƚĂĨĨ�ĂƌĞ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ůĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƚƵŵŶ�ƚĞƌŵ͘��Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ŵŽĚƵůĞ�ŚĂƐ� ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ� ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ��ŽĚŝĞƐ� ƚŽ� ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐƐ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�ǁĞď�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ƚŽŽů͘
^ŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ��ďƐĞŶĐĞ�Ɛ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĚĂǇƐ�ůŽƐƚ�ƉĞƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƐŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ŝƐ�ϰ͘ϵϭ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶŽĨ�ϭϬ͘ϴϬ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĚĂǇƐ�ůŽƐƚ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ�ǁĂƐ�ϱ͘Ϯϰ�ĚĂǇƐ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϭϭ͘ϱϯ�ĚĂǇƐ͘��� �ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ� ǁŝĚĞ� ĂĐƚŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ĂŐƌĞĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ŝƐ� ďĞŝŶŐ� ĨŽůůŽǁĞĚ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ƚŽ� ĂƐƐŝƐƚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞƐ͘

dƌĂĚŝŶŐ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂƚĞƌŝŶŐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ^ƚŽƌĞǇ��ƌŵƐDƵƐŝĐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ

Ͳ άϬ͘ϬϬϬŵάϬ͘ϬϬϬŵάϬ͘ϬϬϬŵ
άϬ͘ϬϬϬŵάϬ͘ϬϬϬŵάϬ͘ϬϬϬŵ

άϬ͘ϭϬϮŵάϬ͘ϬϭϭŵάϬ͘Ϭϳϱŵ
άϬ͘ϬϬϬŵάϬ͘ϬϬϬŵάϬ͘ϬϬϬŵ

;άϬ͘ϬϰϮŵͿάϬ͘ϬϮϳŵάϬ͘ϭϬϵŵ
^ŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ��ďƐĞŶĐĞ Ͳ ϰ͘ϵϭ�ĚĂǇƐ ϳ�ĚĂǇƐ ϱ͘Ϯϰ�ĚĂǇƐ Ϯ͘ϳϮ ĚĂǇƐ ϭϭ͘ϴϲ�ĚĂǇƐ
WW�Z�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ

�� /ŶŝƚŝĂƚĞ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞƐ
�� ,ĂůĨ�ǇĞĂƌůǇ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�
�� &Ƶůů�ǇĞĂƌ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ

Ͳ�Ͳ�Ͳ�
Yϯ�ŚĂůĨ�ǇĞĂƌůǇ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ

ϭϬϬй�Ăůů ϲϯй ϴϵй�;ŝŶŝƚŝĂƚĞͿ� ϳϳй�;ĨƵůů�ǇĞĂƌůǇ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁͿ

P
age 19



WĂŐĞ�Ϯϱ ŽĨ�ϯϰ

�ƌĞĂ 'ŽŽĚ�ŶĞǁƐ �ŚĂůůĞŶŐĞƐ�ͬ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƐƚĞƉƐ
KƉĞŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�tĞƐƚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�,ŝŐŚ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ŽŶ�ϰƚŚ ^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ͘
dŚĞ��ƌĞĂƚŝǀĞ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝŶŐ�Ă�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂǁĂƌĚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�Ăƚ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ĂŶĚ�sĂůĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ŽŶ�ϰƚŚ KĐƚŽďĞƌ͘�
WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ͛Ɛ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн ;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ��ŝŶĐ��ͬtͬDĂŶĚ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ�Ϳ�ŝƐ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�;>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�ϱϴйͬϱϱй͕�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�ϲϵйͬϲϳйͿ͘�
^ĐŚŽŽůͬ�ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�dŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ͘��ϭϰϬ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ͕�ϳϱ�ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�Ă�ƉůĞĚŐĞ͘�

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ɛƚŝůů�ƚŽŽ�ŵĂŶǇ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��ΎͲ'Ϳ͘�WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ͛Ɛ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�ŝƐ�ďĞůŽǁ ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�;ϵϯйͬϵϰйͿ͘�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƌĞĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŵĞĂůƐ�Ăƚ�Ăůů�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĐůŽƐŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉĞĞƌƐ͘�
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�>ŽŽŬĞĚ��ĨƚĞƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ��Kd�^�;�ĚƵĐĂƚĞĚ�KƚŚĞƌ�dŚĂŶ��ƚ�^ĐŚŽŽůͿ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ͘�
�ŽŶƚŝŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ĐƌŽƐƐͲĐŝƚǇ�ǀĂƌŝĂƚŝŽŶ͘�
�ŽŶƚŝŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ǇĞĂƌ�ϭϭ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶ�ĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�;E��dͿ͘�

dŚĞ��ŶŶƵĂů�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϴ͘
^ĐŚŽŽů��ƵĚŐĞƚƐ͗�dŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ůĞǀĞů�ĂŶĚ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĚĞĨŝĐŝƚƐ�ŚĂƐ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ͘��ƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϲͲϭϳ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ϭϰ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�ĚĞĨŝĐŝƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϮϮ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ͘�/Ŷ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ϭϭ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�ĚĞĨŝĐŝƚ͘�
��ďŝĚ�ĨŽƌ�tĞůƐŚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶƚ�ŵŽĚĞůƐ�ŽĨ�ƚĞĂĐŚĞƌ�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĐůƵƐƚĞƌ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�;Đ�άϯϲϬŬͿ͘�KĨĨŝĐĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�&ŝƚǌĂůĂŶ�,ŝŐŚ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ϵ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĐůƵƐƚĞƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŝůŽƚ͘�
&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϳͬϭϴ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�DĞĂůƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�^ƚŽƌĞǇ��ƌŵƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ Ă�ďĂůĂŶĐĞĚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘�

ZĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵŶƚǇ�ƐƉĞŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�Ă�ŬĞǇ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞ͘
dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ƉƌĞƐƐƵƌĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉĞĐŝĂů��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶĂů�EĞĞĚƐ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞůĞŐĂƚĞĚ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͕�ƉĂƌƚŝĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚ͘
WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐĞ�DŽĚĞů�ĨŽƌ��ĂŶĚ��͕�ϮϭƐƚ��ĞŶƚƵƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ͘
�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƉŝƚĂů�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϳͬϭϴ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚŝƐĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ͘
ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�͚�ĂƌĚŝĨĨ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ͛�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵƚŚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉƐ�ŵŽŵĞŶƚƵŵ͘�

dŚĞ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ƉŽƌƚĂů�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ŶŽǁ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�Ăůů��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ��ŽĚŝĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƉŽƌƚĂů�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�Ăůů�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽŽů�ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ďĂƐĞĚ�ƐƚĂĨĨ͘�
tŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�sƵůŶĞƌĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĨŝůĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌŝƐƚŝĐƐ͘��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞŐŝŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƵƚƵŵŶ�ƚĞƌŵ͘�
dŚĞ��>E�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǀŝƐĞĚ͕�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ͕�ƚŽ�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ͘��
dŚĞ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ�tĞůĨĂƌĞ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝƐĞĚ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�ĐƌŝƚĞƌŝĂ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞǁ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ ĂƐ�ŽĨ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ͘

dŚĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĞǆƉůŽƌŝŶŐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞƚƚĞƌ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞ�ƉƵƉŝů�ĚĂƚĂ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ��ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ ^ǇƐƚĞŵ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ ǁŝůů�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ĞĨĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚůǇ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƚŝĂů͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ƐƚƌŝĚĞƐ ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ĚŝŐŝƚĂů�ĂŵďŝƚŝŽŶƐ͘/ŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĞǁ�ĚŝŐŝƚĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ�ƚĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ŐŽŝŶŐ�ůŝǀĞ͘�

�ĂƌůǇ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�
/Ŷ�:ƵůǇ͕�Ă�ǁŚŽůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ��ŝƚǇ�^ƚĂĚŝƵŵ͘��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĨŽƌŵ�ĂŶ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ŽŶ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�sŽŝĐĞ͘�
/Ŷ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ͕�ϭϲ�ŶĞǁ�Žƌ�ĂĐƚŝŶŐ�ŚĞĂĚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă��ĂƌĚŝĨĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͘�

KŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ĚŝĨĨŝĐƵůƚŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐƚĂĨĨ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�ŵĞĚŝƵŵ�ĂŶĚ��ĂƚŚŽůŝĐ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌ
ZĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�WĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ZĞǀŝĞǁ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ʹ�ŚĂůĨ�ǇĞĂƌůǇ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ͘
�ŽŶƚŝŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƐƚĂĨĨ�ƐŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ůĞǀĞůƐ͘�
^ĐŚŽŽůƐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ʹ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ͘

�h^dKD�Z^

&/E�E�/�>

/Ed�ZE�>�
WZK��^^�^

�DW>Kz���Θ�
tKZ<&KZ��

P
age 20



1

CYNGOR CAERDYDD 
CARDIFF COUNCIL 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12 DECEMBER 2017

CHILDREN’S SERVICES PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

REASON FOR THE REPORT

1. The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutinising 
the performance of Children’s (social) Services.  This report sets out performance 
data outlining progress against commitments for the quarter ending 30th September 
2017.

BACKGROUND

2. The ongoing development of the Cardiff Performance Management Framework has 
brought into line the monitoring and evaluation of progress against commitments set 
out in the Corporate Plan and the performance indicators set to assist in the 
understanding of the overall performance position of the Council.  This range of 
performance data relating to Children’s Services is contained in Appendix B to this 
report.

3. The Cabinet have identified that the delivery of their key priorities and the Council’s 
performance against key indicators should be the focus of future quarterly reports.  
Quarterly reports are prepared on that basis, allowing for trend analysis to be 
undertaken on an appropriate basket of indicators and the effective delivery of the 
Administration’s key priorities as attached at Appendix A.

4. The performance report attached at Appendix B has been constructed to highlight 
the progress made in delivering the key objectives, associated performance 
indicators, and commentaries that help to identify progress, issues and actions 
planned where the trend in performance is falling.  To make the information in the 
performance report clearer, each indicator is accompanied by an arrow, and in some 
cases, a happy, indifferent or sad face.

5. For your information, these symbols represent the following:

 The face symbol shows whether performance is likely, unlikely to, or may meet 
the target set for the year.

 The arrow direction shows whether performance has declined, has been 
sustained or improved when compared with an appropriate previous period.

6. At the meeting officers will be present to explain the performance information to the 
Committee, to highlight performance issues, and to answer questions that Members 
might have.

Page 21

Eitem Agenda 6



2

PERFORMANCE DURING QUARTER 2: JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2017

7. Performance is being reported against the following corporate improvement 
objectives:

Looked after children in Cardiff achieve their potential
People at risk in Cardiff are safeguarded
People in Cardiff are supported to live independently

8. The Service has three main functions:

a. Promoting the welfare of children in need of care and support
b. Safeguarding children
c. Improving outcomes for looked after children

OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

9. Within Quarter 2 performance was mixed and there are some areas of strength, 
particularly given demand pressures, however there are also some areas for 
improvement.  Performance in relation to initial child protection conferences improved 
slightly to 94% (109 / 116), which is on target.

10. However, performance in respect of timely wellbeing assessments reduced to 76% 
(516 / 675) from 83% (523 / 630) in Quarter 1.  This is in the context of a 7% (45) 
increase in the number of assessments completed.

11. Performance in relation to allocation of children on the Child Protection Register and 
looked after children to social workers remained at 100% (230 / 230).

12. Work to progress the Directorate’s commitments in the Corporate Plan has continued 
and key areas of progress include:

a. Improve engagement with faith communities - Key strategies around 
communication and engagement have been successfully developed with the 
Muslim Council of Wales and in partnership with Cardiff and Vale Regional 
Safeguarding Children’s Board; this has led to the publication of ‘Safeguarding 
our Children: A Guidance for Mosque Schools and Islamic Studies Settings’.  
The guidance is about valuing and keeping Muslim children who receive an 
Islamic education in Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan safe.  Its purpose is to 
raise community awareness about safeguarding children and to provide 
information about how to deal with concerns.  Copies have been distributed to 
all mosques in Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan and a launch is planned for 
Quarter 3.

b. Young carers - Implementation of the regional young carers’ action plan is 
ongoing and will facilitate better awareness of this group and the support 
available to them.  Young Carer’s Champions have been identified in two high 
schools, one in the East and one in the West of Cardiff.  Future development 
includes identifying additional school based support workers with posts expected 
to be operational in Quarter 1 2018/19.  The Young Carers in Schools 
programme is currently being piloted by a number of schools across Wales 
including, Gwynedd, Denbighshire, Conwy, Pembrokeshire, Merthyr Tydfil, 

Page 22



3

Caerphilly, Cardiff and Greater Gwent.  Supporting Young Carers in Schools: A 
Step-by-Step Guide for Leaders, Teachers and Non-Teaching Staff, is part of 
the Young Carers in Schools programme.  The guide uses a number of tools to 
assist in raising awareness, identifying, assessing and supporting young carers 
in schools.  Wider use of the guide will be explored in Quarter 3 looking at the 
potential for the guide to be used across other agencies including social care.

c. Signs of Safety - Implementation of the Signs of Safety approach within 
Children’s Services is ongoing and is on target to meet the milestones set out in 
the Directorate Plan.  Practice Leader workshops have continued to take place 
throughout the quarter and a 5 day intensive Practice Leader course is due to be 
held in the first week of October.  Engagement and sharing of best practice 
continues with other Local Authorities within both Wales and UK wide.  The 
project plan is progressing well.

d. Corporate Parenting Strategy – The Corporate Parenting Strategy 
implementation plan has been delivered and operational during the past 12 
months with the majority of the actions having been met in full.  As a result it has 
been decided that the formal launch of the Strategy is no longer necessary.

During Quarter 2 2017/18, there were 21 referrals to the Looked After Children 
Traineeship scheme.  Of these, 6 have started Traineeship Placements and 1 
has attended taster days.  10 will receive pre-engagement work before starting a 
Trainee placement.  The remaining 4 are due to be met early in Quarter 3.  An 
additional 11 young started Traineeship Placements during Quarter 2 from 
referrals in previous quarters.  2 young people were offered and accepted Paid 
Trainee roles.  1 young person interviewed but was not successful for a 
Corporate Apprenticeship and 1 young person registered with Cardiff Works.  At 
the end of the quarter there were a total of 11 Trainees and 6 Apprentices (as 
some of these arrangements commenced in previous years).
Monies identified as part of the Cardiff Ambition to create a new post that will 
sustain and develop the Trainee Scheme, including opportunities outside of the 
Council.  A focus group was held with young people who have been through the 
Trainee Scheme to look at changing the identity of the scheme.  The scheme 
will be renamed Bright Starts Trainee Scheme and processes will be redesigned 
with Communications Team before being relaunched.

A Participation and Consultation Steering Group for looked after children has 
been established within Specialist Services (Looked After Children, Personal 
Advisers and Advocacy) that will give some governance and meaningfulness 
where young people are involved in participation and consultation exercises.

13. There has been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in the 
Corporate Plan relating to:

a. Safeguarding Vision and Strategy – The development of a Vision and 
Strategy for Safeguarding in Cardiff was originally targeted for completion by 
31st March 2018, but vacancy related delays now mean that we are targeting 
completion in Quarter 1 2018/19.

b. Direct Payments – 835 people have used the Direct Payment scheme during 
Quarters 1 and 2 (172 children and 663 adults aged 18+).  During Quarter 2, 19 

Page 23



4

started Direct Payments and 12 ceased (of which, the main reason was 
deceased).  The new Direct Payments Support Service commenced on 31st July 
2017.  The transition to the successful provider, Dewis Centre for Independent 
Living (CIL) is being undertaken and the transition plans are being 
implemented.  This provides a solid platform for improving performance in 
keeping with the target.  The growth bid was successful and, as a result, the 
Personal Assistant rate and agency rate will increase from £10.02 to £10.52 
and £11.96 to £14.66 respectively.  Decision that Continuing Health Care is not 
available where Direct Payments are in place for children is being challenged.

c. Disability Futures - The Disability Futures Strategy is making strong progress 
in a highly complex partnership environment and is effectively driving the 
changes needed in relation to models for a regional Complex Needs Service, 
regional recommissioning of services, transition, autism services and integrated 
respite for children.  Despite strong performance in relation to the strategy, 
there has been some slippage against the milestones set out in the Directorate 
Plan.

Integrated delivery models for a regional Complex Needs Service are currently 
being explored, e.g. scoping out the development of a regional Occupational 
Therapy service for Children across Health, Education and Social Services.

The Project Group has undertaken a scoping exercise on the regional 
recommissioning of services e.g. Independent Living Skills (ILS).  As a result 
a project brief to support regional commissioning and alignment is to be 
considered by the Families First Programme Board.

Work to create a Transition process and protocol for Cardiff that can be closely 
aligned with regional partners is ongoing.  Transition process workshops with 
key stakeholders working on transition in Cardiff Council Social Services were 
held and completed during the quarter.  The draft process that was agreed at 
the workshop was further discussed and agreed at the regional operational 
group meeting with relevant Operational Managers from Cardiff, Vale, 
Education and the University Health Board.

Existing University Health Board and Cardiff and the Vale autism services, 
Cardiff and Vale Autism Spectrum Service (CAVASS) and Adult Autism Advice 
(AAA), have been restructured and aligned into an integrated Autism Service.  
The integrated service was launched by Cllr Hinchey (Cardiff), Cllr Kerry (Vale 
of Glamorgan) and the Minister for Social Services and Public Health on the 
27th September.  A wide range of stakeholders will come together to join the 
launch across varied Health directorates, Social Services, Education, schools 
and the Third Sector.

The Officer Decision Report (ODR) in relation to Integrated Respite for 
Children is being finalised and prepared for sign off in Quarter 3.

d. Recruitment and retention of children’s social workers - The impact of 
ongoing work to recruit social workers is beginning to show, with vacancies 
reducing to 20% in Quarter 2, from 26% in Quarter 1.  In September 2017, 30.0 
/ 153.8 social worker posts were vacant.  The vacancy position dipped below 
20% in August for the first time since September 2015.  The improvement in the 

Page 24



5

vacancy rate is despite 4 Principal Social Worker posts in the Looked After 
Children’s Service being filled with existing staff, creating vacancies at Social 
Worker level.

14. In relation to the Directorate Plan, there has been progress in relation to:

a. Emerging areas of risk - Think Safe Service Operational Manager appointed 
and in post.  Practitioner and Team Manager posts for the service have been 
advertised and recruitment is underway.  Cardiff Council arranged to host an all 
Wales network event on sharing best practice in tackling CSE, human trafficking 
and the exploitation of vulnerable adults (held on 2nd October 2017).  The event 
was attended by UK speakers, Welsh Government and partners from across 
Wales.

b. Further embed First Point of Contact / Information, Advice and Assistance 
functions – Work to develop an Early Help Front Door with the Team Around 
the Family (TAF) is ongoing.  The purpose will be to enable referrers to have 
greater understanding of current services and their accessibility prior to 
contacting statutory services.  The first phase of the plan will be to extend the 
current TAF service to give the team additional capacity to deal with 
Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) contacts, using the freephone number 
as the main contact point.  The team will also have additional capacity to 
provide key working support for families who are being stepped down from 
Intake & Assessment.  Currently, the front door service is managed via the 
Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) and there is evidence of improved 
communication between the MASH and referrers, particularly in light of the 
Signs of Safety model being introduced.

c. Recommission Families First Services – Recruitment to central posts has 
concluded and appointments have been made.  Service Specifications have 
been finalised and the draft Officer Decision Report is in development for sign 
off in Quarter 3.  Recruitment of Social Workers from within Children’s Services 
to the Early Help Front Door has also been concluded.

d. Integrated Finance and Service Strategy – The scope of the Institute of 
Public Care (IPC) commission in relation to Adult Service’s financial 
sustainability was agreed and will focus on 4 key work streams:

i. Development of a whole systems ‘Reablement Strategy’ with Health 
including:
1. Review of Community Resource Team (CRT) operating model.
2. Initiated Partner engagement.

ii. Development of an Accommodation Strategy for Older People.
iii. Development of a new model for Adult Social Work practice to parallel 

Signs of Safety.
iv. Development of a new Regional Learning Disabilities Strategy.

15. There has also been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in 
the Directorate Plan relating to:

a. Youth Offending Service (YOS) – The numbers of First Time Entrants (FTEs) 
to the Youth Offending Service (YOS) has increased during Quarter 2 to 21 

Page 25



6

(from 14 in Quarter 1).  The 21 young people committed 39 offences, averaging 
1.86 offences per young person.

The final training session with staff in partner agencies regarding the Enhanced 
Case Management (ECM) service model has been completed.  The model of 
intervention will go live in Quarter 3 with staff in the process of identifying 
suitable young people to start working with the ECM model.

An initial meeting has been held to develop a Youth Offending Service (YOS) 
Young Person’s Panel – a lead officer has been identified in YOS to work in 
collaboration with regional YOS to develop a Participation Strategy.  Cardiff 
Youth Service Active Involvement Team are currently identifying the young 
people who will participate in service feedback sessions and interview panels.

A contract has been awarded to the existing provider to continue delivering a 
Triage Service to the end of this financial year whilst the commissioning of new 
service through the tendering process is completed.

Restructure of YOS staff is an ongoing process.  The next phase will involve 
Unions consulting with staff members on the impact of the creation and deletion 
of posts.

Building work is due to be completed by mid October, at which point staff will 
begin the YOS relocation to the John Kane Building in Gabalfa.

There is potential for mental health needs to be better met due to Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) recruiting to a long standing 
vacancy that has resulted in the provision of a service across all referring 
agencies.

b. Effectiveness of the current partnership arrangements for the delivery of 
Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services – An initial meeting has taken 
place with senior officers from Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 
(CAMHS) – this engagement will need to continue whilst we measure the 
impact of improvements that CAMHS have suggested that we will see.

c. Promoting Family Stability

 Building work on the Adolescent Resource Centre (ARC) has been 
delayed due to discovery of some asbestos in the building that was not 
detected during the procurement process; associated cost implications are 
being considered.

 Family Group Conferencing (FGC) continues to be delivered by Tros 
Gynnal; the commissioning process for a new FGC service will be 
undertaken when the service specification has been finalised.  It is 
anticipated that the service specification will be finalised by the end of 
Quarter 3.

Page 26



7

d. Support Services to Care Leavers

 Preparation Programme – this is part of the recommissioning of 
accommodation happening in partnership with, and led by, Housing through 
a project group.  Development of written information for care leavers has 
been deferred and will be taken forward via the Preparation Programme as 
part of the new outcomes framework for commissioning services.

 Once the recommissioning of the accommodation for The Youth Gateway 
has been completed we will be able to produce written information for 
young people which can include information about all resources available.  
The newly appointed Project Support Officer will be tasked with 
coordinating this work along with work on Transitions.

 Work on re-design of Personal Education Plans (PEPs) has been 
completed and the new PEPs are currently being printed.  We are aware 
that Welsh Government plan to issue an all Wales PEP in the future.

DETAILED COMMENTARY

A) PROMOTING THE WELFARE OF CHILDREN WITH CARE & SUPPORT NEEDS

16. Performance indicators relating to referrals (prior to April 2016), and initial and core 
assessments are no longer available as these have been replaced with Wellbeing 
Contacts / Referrals and Wellbeing Assessments.

17. Children’s Services received 7,224 Wellbeing Contacts / Referrals in Quarter 2 
(Contacts 1) a 3% decrease from 7,476 in Quarter 1.  This figure illustrates the level 
of demand on the service requiring social worker oversight and decision making 
within 24 hours.  A detailed breakdown of Wellbeing Contacts / Referrals is provided 
at Appendix C for the Committee’s information.  This report shows the source and 
outcome of the 7,224 Wellbeing Contacts / Referrals received by Children’s Services 
during Quarter 2.

18. Performance in relation to the timeliness of assessments (SSWB 24) was 76.4% (516 
/ 675) compared with 83.0% (523 / 630) in Quarter 1.  Performance decreased in the 
context of a 7% increase in the number of assessments completed.  Appendix C 
details the source and outcome of the 453 Wellbeing Assessments that were 
completed during the quarter.  Please note that the figures for numbers of 
assessments does not match because the PI requires us to include provision of 
Advice and Assistance.

19. In addition to the above Wellbeing Assessments, the following assessments were 
completed during the quarter:

a. Child Protection enquiries under Section 47 of the Children Act 1989 = 467.
b. Connected Persons assessments of people with a prior connection to a child 

or young person to determine whether it is appropriate for them to become a 
foster carer for the child= 25.

c. 47 care proceedings were initiated in Quarter 2, compared with 79 in Quarter 
1.

Page 27



8

20. The percentage of children supported to remain living within their family (SSWB 25) 
was 51.2% (823 / 1,607) compared with 53.0% (856 / 1,612) in Quarter 1.  Of the 
1,607 children with a Care and Support Plan at 30th September 2017, 823 were being 
supported to live at home (i.e. were not being looked after).

21. The percentage of looked after children returned home from care during the year 
(SSWB 26) was 4.5% compared with 6.2% in Quarter 2 2016/17.  Of the 890 children 
who have been looked after during the year, 40 have returned home.  This PI is 
cumulative, and performance will improve as we progress throughout the year.  In 
addition to the 40 children who were returned home from care, 95 children were in 
the care of their parents, but remain subject to a Care Order, and 67 children were 
placed with relative carers.  It is noted that our judiciary have indicated a reluctance 
to discharge Care Orders, and continue to make new Care Orders as opposed to 
other orders, e.g. Supervision Orders.

22. The latter two PIs are a welcome measure of the effectiveness of the service in 
supporting children and young people within their families and are in line with our 
Corporate Parenting Strategy which seeks to promote family placements.

B) SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN

23. The number of children on the child protection register at the end of Quarter 2 was 
230 (from 204 at the end of Quarter 1) (CS CPR 4).

24. 94.0% (109 / 116) of initial child protection conferences took place within the 15 
working day timescale in Quarter 2 – improving from 93.4% (113 / 121) in Quarter 1 
and reaching target level (SCC/014).  The 7 late conferences included 3 for 1 sibling 
group during the quarter.  All late conferences have since been held.

25. Timeliness of review child protection conferences was 97.4% (190 / 195) in Quarter 2 
compared with 98.8% (163 / 165) in Quarter 1.  The 5 late conferences included 3 for 
1 sibling group.  All late conferences have since been held and the children were de-
registered.

Page 28



9

26. 100% (230 / 230) of children on the child protection register had an allocated social 
worker at 30th September 2017.

27. The percentage of re-registrations of children on the child protection register (SSWB 
27) increased to 8.7% (9 / 104) compared with 4.1% (4 / 97) in Quarter 1.  9 of the 
children registered during the quarter had been on the CPR within the previous 12 
months.  The 9 children comprised 3 sibling groups and one individual.

28. The average length of time for children who were on the CPR during the quarter 
(SSWB 28) was 249 days compared with 289 days in Quarter 1.  This is based on 
children who were de-registered during Quarter 2.

C) IMPROVING OUTCOMES FOR LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN

29. The number of children who were looked after at 30th September 2017 (not including 
those children being looked after as part of a respite care arrangement) was 784 
compared with 756 at 30th June 2017 (CS LAC 3e).  This represents a rate of 10.6 
children per 1,000 in Cardiff.  Whilst this is above the all Wales rate of 9.0 per 1,000 
as at 31st March 2016, the rise is consistent with national trends across Wales and 
the UK.  Fluctuation in the number of looked after children is displayed in the graph 
below.

30. 72.4% (439 / 606) of looked after children were placed with agency providers at the 
end of Quarter 2 (CS LAC 44), decreasing from 73.7% (431 / 585) in Quarter 1.  The 
number of children placed in agency residential placements has further decreased to 
45 from 50 at the end of Quarter 1.  47 care proceedings were initiated in Quarter 2, 
compared with 79 in Quarter 1.

31. 61.9% (375 / 606) of children in regulated placements were placed in Cardiff at the 
end of Quarter 2 compared with 62.9% (368 / 585) at the end of Quarter 1 (CS LAC 
58).  A further 106 children placed outside Cardiff were within 20 miles of their home 
address.  15 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with a relative carer.  For 

Page 29



10

some children placement outside the authority is in their best interests, examples 
include children placed with family members who live outside Cardiff, children placed 
in specialist placements and children who are placed in areas that are closer to their 
home address than some parts of the city.

32. 96.2% (577 / 600) of statutory reviews for looked after children were held within 
prescribed timescales in Quarter 2, stable from 95.8% (544 / 568) in Quarter 1 
(SCC/021).  Of the 23 reviews that were not held on time, 7 were held within a week, 
6 within 2 weeks, 4 within 3 weeks, 3 within 4 weeks and 3 within 6 weeks.

33. 93.8% (563 / 600) of statutory visits were held in accordance with regulations in 
Quarter 2 showing a decrease from 96.0% (545 / 568) in Quarter 1 (SCC/025).  This 
is in the context of an increase in both the overall population of looked after children 
and in the number of children placed at home with their parents who require a higher 
level of statutory visiting.

34. All looked after children were allocated to a social worker at 30th September 2017.

YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE

35. The numbers of First Time Entrants (FTEs) to the Youth Offending Service (YOS) has 
increased during Quarter 2 to 21 (from 14 in Quarter 1).  The 21 young people 
committed 39 offences, averaging 1.86 offences per young person.

36. Please see paragraph 15a for more information on the Youth Offending Service.

STAFFING

37. The percentage of social worker vacancies in Quarter 2 decreased to 20.3% (Staff 1) 
and recruitment initiatives are ongoing.  In September 2017, 30.0 / 153.8 social 
worker posts were vacant.  Please see paragraph 13d for further information.

38. The average number of days of sickness absence for staff in Children’s Services in 
Quarter 2 2017/18 was 6.63, compared with 5.46 in Quarter 2 2016/17.

39. Children’s Services achieved 91% compliance with initiation objectives for 2017/18.

WAY FORWARD

40. Members are invited to consider the information set out in the report and to identify 
any issues which require more detailed scrutiny.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

41. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend, 
but not to make policy decisions.   As the recommendations in this report are to 
consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.  However, legal 
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 
without any modifications.  Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 
Executive / Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 
recommendations.  All decisions taken by or on behalf the Council must (a) be within 
the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed 

Page 30



11

by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers of behalf of 
the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements 
imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly 
informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's 
fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 
circumstances.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

42. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend, 
but not to make policy decisions.  As the recommendations in this report are to 
consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 
relation to any of the work programme.  However, financial implications may arise if 
and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 
modifications.  Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to Executive / 
Council will set out any financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to:

Consider the contents of the report and report any comments to the Cabinet Member.

Tony Young
Director of Social Services
6th December 2017

Page 31



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Quarter 1
PI Type 2008-

09
2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 Q1 
2016-17

Q2 
2016-17

Q3 2016-
17

Q4 
2016-
17

2016-
17

Q1 
2017-18

Q2 
2017-18

Curren
t 
Progre
ss 

Status 2017-
18 

Target
Level 

Triggerin
g Mgt 
Action

Contacts 1
Local PI

Number of 
Contacts  / 
Referrals Received

Local New for 
2016-
17

New for 
2016-
17

New for 
2016-
17

New for 
2016-
17

New for 
2016-17

New for 
2016-17

New for 
2016-17

New for 
2016-17

New for 
2016-17

7,558 7,950 6,927 6,954 29,389 7,476 7,224 Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

N/A Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

New indicator introduced for 2016/17 in response to 
changes implemented as a result of the Social 
Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014.
Contacts and referrals are no longer recorded 
separately - since 6th April 2016 they have been 
recorded on a single "Contact & Referral" form.
3.4% decreases in Contacts / Referrals to 7,224 in 
Quarter 2 from 7,476 in Quarter 1.

CS CPR 4
Local PI

CPR caseload Local 207 213 283 272 255 372 314 255 342 336 279 196 191 191 204 230 Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

N/A Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Figure does not include 16 temporary registrations 
where case management responsibility for the children 
is retained by their home authority.

SSWB 27
National PI

Percentage of re-
registrations of 
children on local 
authority Child 
Protection 
Registers

CP- 2.1
DDP

3.1% 5.6% 2.0% 3.9% 3.8% 4.0% 8.7% Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

9 / 104
9 of the children registered during the quarter had been 
on the CPR within the previous 12 months.  The 9 
children comprised 3 sibling groups and one individual.

SSWB 28
National PI

Average length of 
time for all children 
who were on the 
CPR during the 
year 

DDP 206 200 271 259 230 289 249 Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

18,905 / 76
The average length of time on the CPR for the 76 
children who we de-registered during Quarter 2 was 
249 days.

SCC/014
Local PI

Percentage of 
initial child 
protection 
conferences due in 
the year which 
were held within 15 
working days of the 
strategy discussion

Local 48.9% 73.5% 72.7% 86.3% 82.6% 84.6% 83.8% 90.7% 94.4% 91.2% 96.5% 89.1% 100.0% 94.2% 93.4% 94.0% J 94.0% 84.6% 109 / 116
7 conferences were late including 3 for 1 sibling group 
during the quarter.  All late conferences have since 
been held.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 92.6%

SCC/034
Local PI

Percentage of child 
protection reviews 
carried out within 
statutory 
timescales during 
the year

Local 98.9% 99.2% 99.5% 99.2% 98.5% 98.0% 98.5% 99.8% 99.8% 98.4% 100.0% 96.9% 100.0% 98.8% 98.8% 97.4% K 100.0% 70.0% 190 / 195
5 conferences were late during the quarter, three of 
these are for a sibling group.  All late conferences have 
since been held and the children were de-registered.
All Wales average 2015-16 = 98.0%

Indicator 
Ref

CommentsIndicator Title 2007-
08

Children are protected from significant harm and are empowered to protect themselves

Children and young people are supported to live safely within their families with the lowest appropriate level of intervention

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 1 of 3 06/12/17

P
age 39



Quarter 1
PI Type 2008-

09
2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 Q1 
2016-17

Q2 
2016-17

Q3 2016-
17

Q4 
2016-
17

2016-
17

Q1 
2017-18

Q2 
2017-18

Curren
t 
Progre
ss 

Status 2017-
18 

Target
Level 

Triggerin
g Mgt 
Action

Indicator 
Ref

CommentsIndicator Title 2007-
08

SSWB 24
National PI

Percentage of 
assessments 
completed for 
children within 
statutory 
timescales 

DDP 99.2% 86.3% 88.3% 77.3% 86.3% 83.0% 76.4% K 80.0% 72.0% 516 / 675
Performance decreased in the context of a 7% 
increase in the number of assessments completed.

SSWB 25
National PI

Percentage of 
children supported 
to remain living 
within their family

CP- 2.1
DDP

59.0% 57.3% 56.6% 55.2% 55.2% 53.1% 51.2% L 59.0% 53.1% 823 / 1,607
Quarterly result.  Actual end of year result is populated 
from Looked After Child Census.
Of the 1,607 children with a Care and Support Plan at 
30th September 2017, 823 were being supported to 
live at home (i.e. were not being looked after).

SSWB 26
National PI

Percentage of 
looked after 
children returned 
home from care 
during the year

CP - 1.2
DDP

3.2% 6.2% 9.9% 11.6% 11.6% 3.1% 4.5% L 12.0% 10.8% 40 / 890
Quarter 2 target = 6%
Provisional result.  Actual result will be populated from 
the Looked After Child Census.
Of the 890 children who have been looked after during 
Quarters 1 and 2, 40 have returned home.
This PI is cumulative, and performance will improve as 
we progress throughout the year.  In addition to the 40 
children who were returned home from care, 95 
children were in the care of their parents, but remain 
subject to a Care Order, and 67 children were placed 
with relative carers.  It is noted that our judiciary have 
indicated a reluctance to discharge Care Orders, and 
continue to make new Care Orders as opposed to 
other orders, e.g. Supervision Orders.

CS LAC 3e
Local PI

LAC caseload (not 
including respite 
care arrangements 
for disabled 
children)

Local 521 520 530 521 568 557 611 650 644 678 701 690 721 721 756 784 Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

N/A Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Target 
setting 

not 
appropr

iate

Cardiff rate at 30.09.17 = 10.6 per 000
Wales rate at 31.03.16 = 9.0 per 000

CS LAC 58
Local PI

Percentage of 
children in 
regulated 
placements who 
are placed in 
Cardiff

Local New for 
2008-
09

61.4% 64.8% 67.0% 65.6% 62.2% 62.0% 60.7% 62.5% 61.2% 60.9% 61.6% 63.5% 63.5% 62.9% 61.9% K 63.0% 56.7% 375 / 606
The PI counts only children placed within the LA 
boundaries and excludes children placed in 
neighbouring authorities close to their home area and 
attending Cardiff schools.
13.5% (31) of children not placed in Cardiff are placed 
within 10 miles of their home address.
15 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with 
a relative carer.
Planning always takes account of placement location 
for children.  Some children need a specialist 
placement that is not available in the city or need to live 
away from families, communities or individuals that 
could present risks for them.

Looked after children experience the best care and support to help them recognise their abilities, have aspirations and achieve their full potential

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 2 of 3 06/12/17

P
age 40



Quarter 1
PI Type 2008-

09
2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 Q1 
2016-17

Q2 
2016-17

Q3 2016-
17

Q4 
2016-
17

2016-
17

Q1 
2017-18

Q2 
2017-18

Curren
t 
Progre
ss 

Status 2017-
18 

Target
Level 

Triggerin
g Mgt 
Action

Indicator 
Ref

CommentsIndicator Title 2007-
08

SCC/021
Local PI

Percentage of 
looked after 
children reviews 
carried out within 
statutory 
timescales during 
the year

Local 92.3% 95.9% 96.2% 96.4% 95.2% 95.2% 92.4% 88.3% 94.5% 96.1% 93.8% 94.6% 94.9% 94.8% 95.8% 96.2% K 100% 70.0% 577 / 600
Of the 23 reviews that were not held on time, 7 were 
held within a week, 6 within 2 weeks, 4 within 3 weeks, 
3 within 4 weeks and 3 within 6 weeks.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 95.5%

SCC/025
Local PI

Percentage of 
statutory visits to 
looked after 
children due in the 
year that took 
place in 
accordance with 
regulations

DDP 69.3% 79.5% 88.2% 83.9% 85.1% 89.5% 87.7% 88.9% 86.6% 94.1% 95.3% 96.3% 94.7% 95.1% 96.0% 93.8% K 95.0% 85.5% 563 / 600
Performance has decreased in the context of an 
increase in both the overall population of looked after 
children and in the number of children placed at home 
with their parents who require a higher level of statutory 
visiting.
All Wales average 2015-16 = 88.1%

Staff 1
Local PI

Percentage of 
social work 
vacancies in all 
teams

CP- 2.1 22.1% 26.1% 15.2% 14.7% 15.9% 14.5% 20.8% 27.2% 22.2% 22.9% 24.8% 23.3% 23.3% 23.5% 26.0% 20.3% L 18.0% 19.8% 93.6 / 460.4 
MASH = 16.7%
I&A = 20.1%
CIN = 21.1%
LAC = 21.3%
The impact of ongoing work to recruit social workers is 
beginning to show, with vacancies reducing to 20% in 
Quarter 2, from 26% in Quarter 1.  The vacancy 
position dipped below 20% in August and September 
for the first time since September 2015.  The 
improvement in the vacancy rate is despite 4 Principal 
Social Worker posts in the Looked After Children’s 
Service being filled with existing staff, creating 
vacancies at Social Worker level.

CS LAC 44
Local PI

Percentage of LAC 
placements with 
independent sector 
providers

Local 56.4% 56.6% 58.9% 62.0% 64.2% 68.6% 67.4% 71.8% 72.0% 73.6% 74.0% 73.8% 75.3% 75.3% 73.7% 72.4% J 72.0% 79.2% 439 / 606
Of the 439 placements with agency providers, 197 
started within the last 12 months.  Performance is at 
target level and reflects the lowest level of agency 
placements reported at quarterly outturn since March 
2016.

Children’s Services are provided on the basis of the most efficient and effective use of resources

Cardiff is the destination of choice for committed social work professionals

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 3 of 3 06/12/17

P
age 41



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



Page 43



Page 44


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion
	Minutes

	5 Adroddiad Perfformiad Corfforaethol Chwarter 2 Addysg
	Item 5 App A - Quarter 2 Corporate Overview
	Item 5 App B - Quarter 2 Education

	6 Adroddiad Perfformiad Chwarter Dau - Gwasanaethau Plant
	Item 6 App A - Quarter 2 Corporate Overview
	Item 6 App B - Quarter 2 Children's Services
	Item 6 App C


